
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date 26/05/10 Telephone Enquiries  01752 307990 Fax 01752 304819 

Please ask for Ross Johnston, Democratic 
Support Officer e-mail ross.johnston@plymouth.gov.uk 

 
 
SUPPORT SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
PANEL 
 
DATE: 
TIME: 
PLACE: 

THURSDAY 3 JUNE 2010 
10.00 AM 
COUNCIL HOUSE (NEXT TO THE CIVIC CENTRE) 
PLYMOUTH 

  
Committee Members– 
Councillors Berrow, Browne, Dann, James, Lock, Lowry, Murphy, Stark and 
Thompson 
 
Substitutes–: 
Any Member other than a Member of the Cabinet may act as a substitute 
member provided that they do not have a personal and prejudicial interest in the 
matter under review. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of 
business overleaf. 
 
Members and Officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the 
meeting. 

 
 BARRY KEEL 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

BARRY KEEL 
Chief Executive 
Floor 1 - Civic Centre 
Plymouth 
PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Public Document Pack



 

 
SUPPORT SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

 
 

PART I (PUBLIC PANEL) 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR    
  
 The panel will appoint a Chair and Vice-Chair to the panel for the municipal year 

2010/2011. 
  
2. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance by panel members. 
  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 
  
4. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 4) 
  
 To confirm the minutes of the last meeting held on 18 March 2010. 
  
5. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be 

brought forward for urgent consideration. 
  
6. TERMS OF REFERENCE   (Pages 5 - 6) 
  
 The panel will note the terms of reference for the Support Services Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel. 
  
7. TRACKING RESOLUTIONS AND FEEDBACK FROM 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD   
(Pages 7 - 8) 

  
 The panel will monitor the progress on previous resolutions and to receive any 

feedback from the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board. 
  
8. APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED REPRESENTATIVES    
  
 The panel will consider the appointment of co-opted representatives and/or 

confirm existing co-opted representatives. 
  
9. UPDATE ON CONSULTATION EVENTS    
  
 The panel will receive an update on the outcomes of recent consultation events 



 

from the Policy and Performance Officer. 
  
10. AN UPDATE ON CORPORATE IMPROVEMENT PRIORITY 14 - 

PROVIDING BETTER VALUE FOR MONEY   
 

  
 To receive an overview of Corporate Improvement Priority 14, ‘providing better 

value for money’. 
  
11. FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE SCORECARD   (Pages 9 - 10) 
  
 To receive the finance and performance scorecards relating to the panels 

Corporate Improvement Priorities (CIPs). 
  
12. DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 2010/2011   (Pages 11 - 12) 
  
 To consider the panel’s draft work programme. 
  
13. FUTURE MEETING DATES    
  
 The panel is asked to note the dates of future meetings for the municipal year 

2010/2011. All meetings will commence at 10am. 
 
Thursday 8 July 2010 
Thursday 2 September 2010 
Wednesday 3 November 2010 
Thursday 13 January 2011 
Thursday 10 March 2011 

 

  
14. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 

Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) 
of business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph(s)  …. of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as 
amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

  
PART II (PRIVATE PANEL) 

 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE that under the law, the Panel is entitled to 
consider certain items in private.  Members of the public will be asked to leave the 
meeting when such items are discussed.  
 
Nil. 
 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Support Services Overview and Scrutiny Panel Thursday 18 March 2010 

Support Services Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

Thursday 18 March 2010 
 

PRESENT: 
 
Councillor James, in the Chair. 
Councillor Lowry, Vice Chair. 
Councillors Berrow, Browne, Dann, Sam Leaves, Stark, Stevens and Thompson. 
 
The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 12.40 pm. 
 
Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may be subject 
to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have been amended. 
 

59. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
There were no declarations of interest in accordance with the code of conduct. 
 

60. MINUTES   
 
Resolved that the minutes of the 21 January 2010 be approved as a correct record. 
 

61. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS   
 
There were no items of Chair’s urgent business. 
 

62. FEEDBACK FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD   
 
The Chair provided feedback from the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board. It was 
reported that the Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel would lead on a task and finish group 
on homelessness and housing needs in the new municipal year, members of the Support 
Services Scrutiny panel had been requested to join the task and finish group. The Chair and 
Vice Chair had been invited to join with their counterparts from the Growth and Prosperity 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel in the new municipal year to draft a project initiation document. 
 

63. ACCOMMODATION BUSINESS PLAN   
 
The panel received a presentation from the Head of Corporate property on the developing 
business case for the Accommodation Strategy. It was reported that – 
 

(i) a director and member lead had been appointed; 
 

(ii) all floors in the civic centre were open plan; 
 
(iii) positive outcomes from the floor five pilot had shown that telephony had worked in a 

flexible environment, meeting rooms were working well, perimeter storage and the 
welfare room had been a success and communications across teams had improved ; 

 
(iv) there had been issues with Information Technology, which included problems with 

roaming profiles, system speeds and server based software; 
 

(v) the business case preparation was still underway and would reflect lessons learned 
from the floor five pilot, options for freeing up accommodation and capital and 
revenue implications. It is expected that submission to CMT will take place at the end 
of March 2010. 

 
In response to questions from the panel, it was reported that – 
 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 4Page 1



Support Services Overview and Scrutiny Panel Thursday 18 March 2010 

(vi) initially work on the IT systems had been carried out by contractors but had now 
transferred to in house technicians, servers have not been configured correctly 
across the council and solutions had been developed for problems that had arisen; 

 
(vii) the costs of IT infrastructure improvements would be built into the business case, 

money saved on accommodation could be invested into IT; 
 
(viii) funding for the programme had not yet been identified; 
 
(ix) 75 staff were involved in the pilot project, the programme would be rolled out in 

phases with the first phase affecting around 650 staff; 
 

(x) Plymouth Community Homes had moved from Windsor house which made it an ideal 
site for the first phase of the accommodation strategy; 

 
(xi) Ballard House was the most expensive site in the Council’s portfolio. To leave Ballard 

House early would cost in the region of 6 million pounds, to leave Windsor house 
could see a receipt in the region of 2 million pounds. Leaving Ballard House would 
see significant revenue savings whereas leaving Windsor house could provide a 
substantial capital receipt. 

 
(xii) the authority currently co-locates with partners in approximately 24 buildings, work is 

continuing with the Primary Care Trust, Police and University to identify further 
opportunities for co-location. Partners understood the benefits and IT systems were 
starting to link together. 

 
Resolved that the Panel invite the lead officers for the Accommodation, People and ICT 
strategies to a single item meeting to scrutinise the development of business cases and how 
the strategies will work together. 
 

64. COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY   
 
The Panel received a presentation on the work of Corporate Communications from the Head 
of Corporate Communications. It was reported that –  
 

(i) the internal and external communication strategies are in the process of being 
updated and would be presented to CMT at the end of March 2010; 

 
(ii) the department plays a key role in supporting the communications work of all 

directorates; 
 
(iii) the reputations campaign had focused the Authorities communications on managing 

the media, developing a consistent brand and communicating well with staff and 
residents; 

 
(iv) survey results had highlighted that communications had to be targeted 

demographically so that residents are able to receive information and engage with the 
council in the medium which best suits them; 

 
(v) satisfaction survey results tend to be poor in large urban areas; 

 
(vi) 70% of the residents panel felt well informed about the work of the council; 

 
(vii) work is ongoing to improve the information around scrutiny and the consultation 

portal. 
 
In response to questions from members of the panel, it was reported that –  
 

Page 2



Support Services Overview and Scrutiny Panel Thursday 18 March 2010 

(viii) there is clear guidance in place within the council’s communications protocol on 
councillor’s media and public relations;  

 
(ix) committee and panel chairs are able to authorise press releases; 

 
(x) it was standard practice that corporate communications would not be involved in 

public relations for ward members; 
 
(xi) Corporate Communications had been involved in the little teds nursery case and had 

run a press conference and provided press releases; 
 
(xii) Corporate Communications would receive feedback and comments from members 

which could highlight priorities in wards and lead to more focused and relevant 
information on the website and in print publications. 

 
Resolved that- 
 

1. the Head of Corporate Communications investigate how non-executive ward 
councillors’ relationships and interaction with his department can be improved; 

 
2. the Head of  Corporate communications returns to the panel at a future date; 

 
3. press releases be added as a standing item to this panels agenda. 

 
65. UPDATE ON CONSULTATION EVENTS   

 
Resolved that this item was deferred by the panel for the next meeting due to time 
constraints. 
 

66. QUARTERLY REPORT   
 
Resolved that the quarterly report for the panel be approved. 
 

67. UPDATE ON APPRAISAL PROCESS   
 
The Assistant Director for Human Resources gave a presentation on the current status of the 
authority’s staff appraisal process. It was reported that -  
 

(i) 90% of employees had received an appraisal 6% were either due to have one before 
the end of March and 4% could not be done due to issues such as maternity leave or 
new employees. 

 
(ii) 66% of appraisal forms completed and returned, there had been variations in return 

rate across directorates; 
 
(iii) actions that are being taken include continual tracking by HR of numbers being 

returned, by department / team / and individual name, reminders of need to return 
forms being sent to Team Plymouth and departments being sent specific data on 
which appraisal forms have been returned, by which managers. 

 
(iv) findings had shown 13% of staff have exceeded expectations. 78% have met 

expectations and 9% do not meet current expectations; 
 

(v) feedback from managers, employees and the unions has shown that the framework 
has helped to reaffirm required standards and had made staff who had not previously 
had appraisals feel more included, valued and motivated; 

 
(vi) feedback had also shown that the process took too long; 

Page 3



Support Services Overview and Scrutiny Panel Thursday 18 March 2010 

 
(vii) next steps identified will be the streamlining of the appraisal process including the 

reduction of the working in the competency descriptions and a simplified process. 
 
 
In response to questions from members of the panel, it was reported that – 
 
(viii) Levels are challenging  to achieve although the authority’s use competency 

framework the authority is demonstrating its commitment to high quality public 
services; 

 
(ix) there has been variations in return rates across the directorates, it was thought this 

was due to the laborious nature of the paperwork which would be changed; 
 

(x) the appraisal process would normally take place between April and October, the first 
round had taken place between December and January the process could be 
evaluated and lessons learnt; 

 
(xi) it was anticipated that annual pay increments would be performance based this 

process would begin in October.  
 
 

68. WORK PROGRAMME   
 
Resolved that the panels work programme be approved. 
 

69. TRACKING RESOLUTIONS   
 
Tracking resolutions were noted by members of the Panel. 
 

70. EXEMPT BUSINESS   
 
There were no items of exempt business. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



Support Services Overview and Scrutiny Panel -  
 

Terms of Reference 
 

• To review new and existing policies and consider how they may be 
improved and developed; 

• To monitor the budget and performance of the Cabinet Member, 
Department and partners to ensure that the priorities for the area are 
being delivered upon; 

• To monitor performance against the relevant Corporate Improvement 
Priorities; 

• To review Policies within the Budget and Policy Framework; 
• To consider Equality Impact Assessments against new and existing 

policies; 
• To investigate local issues to find out how the council and its partners 

can improve to meet the needs of local people; 
• To make recommendations about service delivery to the Cabinet (via 

the Board) 
• To review and scrutinise the performance of partner organisations 
• To set up Ad-Hoc Working Groups as and when required; 
• To produce quarterly progress reports to go to the management board 
 

Policy Areas 
 

• Business Transformation 
• Finance 
• ICT 
• Human Resources and Organisational Development 
• Democracy and Governance 
• Assistant Chief Executive 
• Policy and Performance 
• Communications  

 
Cabinet Members 
 

• Finance, Property, People and Governance 
• Customer Services 
• Performance and Transformation 

 
Directorate 
 

• Chief Executive’s 
• Corporate Support 

 
Corporate Improvement Priorities (CIPs) 
 

• Involving residents (CIP 2) 
• Staff performance (CIP 13) 
• Value for money (CIP 14) 

Agenda Item 6Page 5



 
LSP Link 
 

• LSP Support  
 
Membership  
The Chair of the Panel shall serve on the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Board. The Support Services Overview and Scrutiny Panel will be chaired by 
a Member of the majority political group with the vice-chair from the opposition 
political group. All Members of the panel will adhere to the general rules of 
Overview and Scrutiny.   

Page 6



TRACKING RESOLUTIONS 
Support Services Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

 
Date/Minute 
Number 

Resolution Explanation/Minute Officer Progress Target 
Date 

18 (4) 
01/10/09 

to request an example of the 
complete process for new 
appraisals in one service 
area, this should include 
actions taken after the 
appraisal 

 Mark Grimley, 
Assistant Director of 
HR and 
Organisational 
Development 

As discussed at the pre-agenda meeting for the 
meeting on 3 June 2010 it was discussed that the AD 
for HR and Organisational Development had been 
providing updates to the panel and should be invited 
to a future meeting to provide an example of the 
complete process. 
 

 

18 (5) 
01/10/09 

to request a copy of the 
communications strategy 

 Richard Longford, 
Head of 
Communications 

As discussed at the pre-agenda meeting for the 
meeting on 3 June 2010it was discussed that the 
Head of Communications had provided an outline of 
communications activity to the panel and he be 
requested to attend a future meeting to present the 
internal and external communication strategies. 
 

 

31 (1) 
29/10/09 

to invite the Customer 
Services, Performance and 
Partnerships and the Policy 
and Performance Officer 
back to the future meeting of 
this panel to provide 
members with an update on 
how consultation responses 
are used and what feedback 
is given to the people who 
take part in the consultation. 
 

 Giles Perrit Giles Perritt is attending the meeting on 3 June to 
present this item. 

03/06/10 

31 (2) 
29/10/09 

to invite the Customer 
Services, Performance and 
Partnerships and the Policy 
and Performance Officer 
back to the future meeting of 
this panel to provide 
members with a response to 
the request for a relevant 
Councillor to be one of the 
first people to be consulted in 
any consultation that impacts 
on their area of responsibility 
or ward. 
 

 Councillor Ricketts, 
Cabinet Member / 
Jo Atkey, Policy and 
Performance Officer 

Giles Perritt is attending the meeting on 3 June to 
present this item. 

03/06/10 A
genda Item

 7
P

age 7



33( 1) 
29/10/09 

that a working group 
undertake to look into the 
current resource provision. 
 

 Working Group 
Members 

  

33 (2) 
29/10/09 

that a working group 
undertake to look into the 
content of panel’s work 
programmes, including 
details around whether items 
were statutory considerations 
or not. 
 

 Working Group 
Members 

  

 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 
 

Date/min 
number 

Resolution / 
Recommendation 

Explanation / Minute Response Explanation 

     
 
Grey = Completed (once completed resolutions have been noted by the panel they will be removed from this document) 
 
Red = Urgent – item not considered at last meeting or requires an urgent response 
 

P
age 8



Agenda Item 11Page 9



Page 10



Support Services Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 20010/11 

 

Topics J J A S O N D J M A M 

            
Accommodation, ICT, People, Strategy            

            
Local Strategic Partnership (Support) (as 
referred by Management Board)            

            
Budget and Performance Issues (as 
referred by Management Board)            

            
Corporate Plan  - CIP 2 (involving 
residents)            

            
Corporate Plan – CIP 13 (staff 
performance)            

            
Corporate Plan – CIP 14 (value for 
money)            

            
Quarterly Scrutiny Report            

            
            Housing Needs (Joint task and finish as 
referred by management board)            

Provision of Scrutiny Resources (referred 
by Management Board)            

 
 

Agenda Item 12Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	6 TERMS OF REFERENCE
	7 TRACKING RESOLUTIONS AND FEEDBACK FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD
	11 FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE SCORECARD
	12 DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 2010/2011

